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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of
Stopak india Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Stopak India Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements ingluding a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other




Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financiai statements that give a true and fair view of the financia
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financiai statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
cantrols.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
reiated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, it
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit




» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financiai statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financiai statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative faciors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaiuate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far, it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to adequacy of Internai Financial Controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate report in “Annexure B". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financiai reporting;

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, as
the Company is private Company, the provisions of Section 197 (18) read with Schedule V of the




h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule %1
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

Il The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 which would impact
its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For H Sreenivasan and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's istration No.: 0061158

Membership No. 021168 $an =
Unique Document Identification Numb .-2'(3021 168AAAAFJB973

Piace: Bengaiuru

Date: 23 September 2020 CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

For Stopak indie Private Limited

L —



ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements’

of our report of even date)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report that;

1.a)

b)

7.a)

The Company is maintaining records for its fixed assets and is in the process of updating the
same to show full particulars including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets

The fixed assets are physically verified by the management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all items over a period of three financial years, which in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies between the book records and the physical
inventory have been noticed.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly
the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the management has conducted physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals, during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Gompany has not granted any interest
free loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provision of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder apply.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement for
maintenance of cost records pursuant to the Companies (cost records and audit) Ruies, 2014
specified by the Central Government of India under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the Company for the year under audit

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty and any other statutory dues as
applicable, to the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid
statutory dues were outstanding as on the last day of the financial year for a pericd of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
goods and service tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, duty of customs, which have
Wt been deposited on account of any dispute:



10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayments of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions. According to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have anv ioans from
government or dues to debenture holders during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). During the year
the Company has not raised any term loan. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our

audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid or provided
managerial remuneration during the year. As the Company is private company provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of Company, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of
the Act where applicable and the details of such transaction have been disclosed in the financial
Statements as required by accounting standard. The provisions of section 177 of the Act relating
to Audit committee are not applicable to the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934.

For H Sreenivasan and Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm's

Partner

Membership No. 021168

istration No.: 006115S

nivasan H)
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
{Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Stopak India Private Limited {“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financiai
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was estabiished and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of intemnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financiai reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorisations of management and directors of the company, and @ms pmcﬁ Qi?ce
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could have a material effect on the financial statements.
For Siopak indie Privete Limited
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internai financial controls over financial reporting, inciuding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For H Sreenivasan and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's istration No.: 006115S

enivasan H)
Partner &5
Membership No. 021168 Fnpat’

Unique Document ldentification Number: 20021168AAAAFJ8973

Piace: Bengaluru
Date: 23 September 2020
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For Stopak india Private Limited

Q}«Q\N\W Director



STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHLET AS AT 31 MARCH 2620

1R Ak

As at

Particulars | Note el
S _No. | 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
I.ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propety plant and equpmoent 4 BG4 47 G084 67
Right to use assets 5 643,73 -
Other ntangible assels G 639 67 74867
Financial assels
(iy eposits 7 10.47 9.80
(i) Other non-current financial assets 8 45,00 47 14
Other non-curren! assets 9 1.3G | 7.01
Total Non-current assets 2,104.70 1,717.29
Current assets
invenlories 10 938.4¢ 1,287.24
Financial assels
(i Trade reccivabies 11 2,063.42 1,202 .84
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 642.61 378.51
(iii) Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalenis 13 5,477.00 4,724.00
(iv) Other financial assels 14 76.26 52.48
Olher currenl assels 15 1,633.00 2,129 41
Total Current Assets 10,830.78 9,774.48
Total Assets 12,935.48 11,491.77
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 16 5.58 5.58
b) Other equity 10,008.69 8,681.76
Total Equity 10,014.27 8,687.34
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Olher nan-current financial fabilities 17 494.24 .
Long term provisions 18 86.40 61.83
Delerred tax liabilities (Net) 19 46.67 131.57
Total non-current iiabilities 627.31 193.40
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i} Short term borrowings 20 600.00 1,100.00
(i¢) Trade payables 21
Total oulstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 216.84 270.69
Total oulslanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enlerprises 1.110.34 986.58
(iii) Gther financial liabililies 22 61.62 -
Other current liabilities 23 134,05 153 52
Shorl {erm provisions 24 92.30 88.49
Curten! tax liabilities {net) 25 78.75 11.75
Total current liabilities 2,293.90 2,611.03
Total Liabilities 2,921.21 2,804.43
Total Equity and Liabilities 12,935.48 11,.491.77
Significant accounling policies 2-3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial staterments
As per our report of even date altached
For H Sreenivasan & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
Chartered Accountants \ F
 Reqmyajion No: 0061158 5\}-’/ \ ~
\va |
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Membership No, 021168
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Gaurav Maheshwari

Director
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Director
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(% 1n [ akhsg)

o - — For the year For the year
Particulars No ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 26 10,937.29 11.800 37
Other income 27 965.62 81332
Total Revenue (A} 11,902.91 12.613.69
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 4,784.58 6.135.94
Excise duty .
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 29 308.80 (185.18)
Employee benefits expense 30 1,182.90 1,316.60
Finance cosls 31 101.80 53.16
Depreciation and amortization expense 32 260.11 182.65
Other expenses 33 1,981.86 1,704 02
Total expenses (B) 8,620.05 9,207.19
Profit before tax (C=A-B}) 3.282.86 3,406.50
Tax expehse: 42
Current lax 896.06 977.25
Prior year tax adjustment (10.24) -
Deferred tax (83.36) 4.83
Total 804.46 982.08
Profit for the year 2,478.40 2,424.42
Other Comprehensive Income / (L.oss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (6.10) 13.86
Income {ax relaling fo Hems that wiil not be reclassified to profil or
loss 1.54 (4.04)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended, net of tax 2,473.84 2,434.24
Earnings per equity share (of ¥ 1 per share)
(1) Basic 43 44415 434.47
(2) Diluled 444 .15 434 47
Significant accounting policies 2-3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date aitached
For H Sreenivasan & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accounlants

|
Finm's Registration No - 0081158 r .y L{.i/ -
- \&\\»&- \)M e = e

N -
fivasan H \\\\}’ Gaurav Maheshwari ~Sanlosh C Tandon

Proprietor 24 lFIED 12 UE\COPY Director Direclor

Membership No. 021168 DIN:00D85874 DIN: 07806047
Place: Bengaluru F

Iaée:%(r\ ARL 2%
bete. 23 GEP 2000 Private Limited, .  "{tp 7070

Q}&N\\\N/ Director




STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STATENMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THFE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

ParliciHars

[¥ 1y L akns)

A. Cash Hlow from/(used i’|.1) op‘erafing activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Unwinding interest
Interest expense
irterest incorme on deposits
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealised exchange loss
Provision for doubtful debls
Loss/ (Profit) from sale of Property. piant and equipment
Movement in working capital;
(Increase)idecrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in trade payable and other financial liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions
Increase/(decrease) in inventories
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Cash generated from operations (A)

B. Cash flow from/(used) investing activities
Purchase of Properly, plant and equipment {including capital work in progress)
and capitai advances
Purchase of other intangibles assets
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment
(Increase)idecrease in fixed deposil with bank
Cash (used} in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from/{used in) financing activities
Proceed /{repayment) of borrowings (netl)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax}
Payment towards lease liabilities
Interest paid

Cash (used) infgenerated from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
‘Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances wilh banks in current accounts

Balances with banks in deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total cash and bank halances (Refer note 12)

[ Forthe yoar For the year
cnded ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
3,287 86 3,400 50
(0 67) 10.63)
10180 5316
(350.84) (180.15)
260 11 182 65
(6.50) 4,48
(B54.08) (161.27)
6991 99.87
487 61 190.97
2.81 42.21
348.75 (82.83)
3,361.76 3,544.96
(821.58) (999.18)
2,530.18 2,545.78
(43.28) (173.27)
* (1.64)
327.06 155.84
124 -
(750.86) (2,506.12)
(465.84) (2,525.19)
(600.00) 165.14
(1,146.91) -
(102.96) -
(50.38) (53.16)
(1,800.25) 111.98
264.10 132.58
378.51 245,93
642.61 378.51
0.04 0.41
642.57 17810
- 200.00
642.61 378.51

Significant accounting policies 2-3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repori of even date attached

For H Sreenivasan & Co
Chartered Accountants
ipgistration No : 0061158

\\\K \\a

m\c

Propriefor lm

Membership No 021168

Place: Bengaluru

Date: ZSSEP UZU

Date

Director

Dl N 00085874

)
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

A Equily (£ 1 Lakhs)
i Particulars Amount
Balance as at 4 April 2018 _ 5.58
Changes in equity share capital during the year i
Balance as at 31 March 2019 558
Changes in equily share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5.58
Other Equity (¥ in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Securfties Retai.ned Total
Premium Earnings

Balances at 1 April 2018 1,049.44 5,198.08 6,247.52
Addition during the year - -
Profit for the year - 2,424.42 2,424.42
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax - 9.82 9.82
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,049.44 7,632.32 8,681.76
Profit for the year - 2,478.40 2,478.40
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax - (4.56) (4.56)
Dividend paid (including dividend tax} (1,146.91) (1,146.91)
Balarnce at 31 March 2020 1,049.44 §,959.25 10,008.69

Significant accounting policies

2-3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For H Sreenivasan & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No.: 006115,

™
b

Sreenivasan H)
Proprietor
Membership No. 021168

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 23 SEP nn

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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S\ Gaurav Maheshwari

Direclor
DIN:00085874

Place: e AN

Date: 7 3 SEP 2020
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For Stopak india Private Limited

Director
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1.

Corporate information

Stopak India Private Limited (‘the Company”) was incorporaled on 08 May 2008 with the
objective of manufacturing specialised Packing material, Trade, Export, Import of
packaging products for bulk packaging industry in joint venture with Stopak pty Ltd, The
Company is subsidiary of M/s SPG Netherlands BV The ulimate holding company is
Signode Industrial Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

In accordance with the notification isstied by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the

Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) Specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended. The financial statements of the Company are prepared and
presented in accordance with Ind AS.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporling period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least iwelve months after the reporting period

Py .'é\[l ather assets are classified as non-current. _\._'_., 4
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Adiability is current when:
ILis expected to be settled in normal operaiing cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liahilities are classified as non-current

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair values at each Balance
Sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
imeasurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabililies

Leve! 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant

.4 the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

“Swas
/N as

/: ,’FJ/ NE\ S -
=4
5 L g—‘]] »’u{

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unchservable

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This
applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is
added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from its previously
assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant
and equipment, including day-lo-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and
equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
are also included to the exlent they relate to the period till such assets are ready
to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income slatement when the

'f;*fqueﬁy, plant and equipment is de-recognized.
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Cxpenditure directly relating o conslruction aclivity is  capitalized Indirect
expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent to
which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto
Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the
construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is
incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Costs of assels not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under
capital work- in- progress

e. Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation-is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight line method as prescribed under
schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset class Useful life as per management

Plant and Machinery 15 years

fFurniture and fittings 10 years

Vehicles* (second hand vehicle) 2 years

Computers 3 years _
Office equipment 5 years N

* The Company believes the useful lives as given above best represent the useful
life of these assets based on internal assessment where necessary, which is
different from the useful lives as prescribed under part C of Schedule Il of the

Companies Act, 2013.
f. Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The Company determines
the tax as per the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961 and other rules specified
thereunder.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recoghised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity), Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

- ;—;apgropriate
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Deferred tax

Deferied tax is provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences
hetween the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credils and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assels are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al each reporting date
and reduced to the exlent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting dale and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future {axable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
gither in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the cbligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounling the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriale pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the

/'(:-;2121_,{{1};? unt cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability
P L e
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Conlingent liabilitics are also disciosed when there is a possible obligation ansing
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Claims against the Company. where the possibility of any outflow of resources in
settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.”

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may
result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when
the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value after
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Costs
of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Cost includes all
charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other
levies, transit insurance. Work in progress and finished goods includes
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
cosl necessary to make sale.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar aliowances.

|. Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and titles have passed, al which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

a. the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

b. the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to ihe
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

¢. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

d. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Company; and

e. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably

Sales include excise duty but exclude sales tax, value added tax and goods

T e SR /)
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIVITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Exporl benefits arc accounied for in the year of exports based cn chigibility

and when there 1s no uncertainty in receiving the same.

il. Interest and other income

Income in respect of interest on fixed deposit with banks is recognized on
accrual basis at the rate al which such entitlement accrue. Royalty income is

accounted on accrual basis
j. Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presenled in
Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

- Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the

transaction.

- Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences
arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as

income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

k. Financial instruments
Initial recognition

The company recognise the financial asset and financial liabilities when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All the financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition,
except for trade receivable which are initially recognised at transaction price.
Transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition of issue of
financial asset and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and

loss are added fo the fair value on the initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
{A) Non derivative financial instruments

(i) Financial Assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following

conditions are met:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold

assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash

,'/__L:,-:\\‘i:;f;g}\ principal amount outstanding,
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STOFPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

This category is the most relevant e the Company. Al the Loans and othet
receivables under tinancial assels (except Investmenls) are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed ot delerminable payments that are not gquoted in an aclive market
Irade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as
reduced by impairment amount.

(ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss/OClI
instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all
fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even
on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.
(iii} Financial liabilities

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

(2)Trade & other payable
After initial recognition, trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts

The Company on a case to case basis elects to account for financial
guarantee contracts as a financial instrument or as an insurance contract,
as specified in Ind AS 109 on Financial Instruments and Ind AS 104 on
Insurance Contracts. The Company has regarded all its financial
guaraniee confracts as insurance contracts. At the end of each reporting
period the Company performs a liability adequacy test, (i.e. it assesses
the likelihood of a pay-out based on current undiscounted estimates of
future cash flows), and any deficiency is recognized in profit or loss.

. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund,
Employee State Insurance and Employee Pension Fund Schemes are defined
contribution schemes (collectively the ‘Schemes’). The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable 1o the Schemes. The Company
recognizes conlribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount
due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount paid
is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent
\\m_gtluglﬁi valuation, which is done based on project unit credit method as at the
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STOPAK iNDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

balance sheel date. The Company recognizes lhe nel obligalion of @ defined
benelit plan in its balance sheel as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through
re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in
alher comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains
and losses on defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently
reclassified 1o statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant
Schedule lIl, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on

defined benefit plans (net of tax) to retained earnings

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve
months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expecis to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

m. Leases

Whenever the Company enters into a new arrangement, it must determine, at the
inception date, whether the arrangement contains a lease. This determination
generally depends on whether the arrangement conveys to the Company the
right to control the use of an explicitly or implicitly identified fixed asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Contral of an underlying asset is
conveyed 1o the Company if the Company obtains the rights to direct the use of
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from using the underlying

asset.

If a lease exists, the Company must then determine the separate lease and non-
lease components of the arrangement. €ach right to use an underlying asset
conveyed by a lease arrangement should generally be considered a separate lease
component if it both: (i) can benefit the Company without depending on other
resources not readily available to the Company and (ii) does not significantly
affect and is not significantly affected by other rights of use conveyed by the
lease. Aspects of a lease arrangement that transfer other goods or services to the
Company but do not meet the definition of lease components are considered non-
lease components. The consideration owed by the Company pursuant to a lease
arrangement is generally allocated to each lease and non-lease components for
accounting purposes. Each lease component is accounted for separately from
other lease components, but together with the associated non-lease companents.

Generally, upon the commencement of a lease, the Company will record a lease
liability and a right-of-use (ROU) asset. However, the Company has elected, for
certain classes of underlying assets with initial lease terms of twelve months or
less {known as short-term leases), 10 not recognize a lease liability or ROU asset.
Lease liabilities are initially recorded at lease commencement as the present
value of future lease payments. ROU assets are initially recorded at lease
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

following, if applicable: (i) initial direct costs and (i) lease payments made, net of
lease incentives received, prior to lease commercement,

Over the lease term, the Company generally increases it lease liahilities using the
effective interest method and decreases its lease liabilities for lease payments
made. The Company generally amortizes its ROU assets ovel the shorter of the
estimated useful life and the lease term and assesses its ROU assets for
impairment, similar to other long-lived assets.

n. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are trealed
as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative lo a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are
considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resull in outcomes that
require a material adjustment {o the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
A smin future periods. In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies,

5
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

management makes judgement. estimales and assumpiions which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

A. Recoverability of advances/receivables
At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding
receivables and advances.

B. Useful lives of depreciable/amottizable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/famortizable
assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates refate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of certain software and other assets

C. Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality,
discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these
assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined

benefit expenses.

D. Fair value measurements
Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where aclive market quotes are not available) and non-financial
assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument. Management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that
would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

E. Provisions
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts
and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against
the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However the actual future outcome
may be different from this judgement.

F. Recognition of deferred tax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against
which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, significant judgement is
required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties
in various tax jurisdictions.

3. Recent accounting pronouncements

There are no major pronouncements which would impact the Company. Further the
_Company is in the regular process of evaluating the effect of any pronouncements as
7~ Hé!@%g1 issued on the financial statements
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

5 RIGHT TO USE ASSETS

(# in Lakhs)
- - Category of Right to use Assels
Particulars Factory building Total

Gross hlock
As at 1 April 2019 ' :
Initial recognition under IND AS 116 * 612.59 612.59
Additions - i
Deductions . -
As at 31 March 2020 612.59 612.59
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2019 - -
Charge for the year 68.86 68.86
Deductions - :
As at 31 March 2020 68.86 68.86
Net block
As at 31 March 2020 543.73 543.73

*Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard
to all iease contracts existing on 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method.
Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the ROU asset at its carrying
amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but
discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting poticies included as
part of the financial for year ended 31 March 2019.

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and

,g“"\angg/' ation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
’ 7

A



STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

6 OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS

C— (2 in | akhs)
Intangible Assets
. Computer Patent and
B Particulars SoftvF\)/are Trademark Total
Gross black
As at 1 April 2018 36.40 1,018.30 1,054.70
Additions 1.64 164
Deductions - -
As at 31 March 2019 38.04 1,018.30 1,056.34
Additions B -
Deductions - - -
As at 31 March 2020 38.04 1,018.30 1,056.34
Depreclation/Amortization -
As at 1 April 2018 14.03 186.64 200.67
Charge for the year 5.16 101.83 106.99
As at 31 March 2018 19.19 288.47 307.66
Charge for the year 6.94 102.07 109.01
Deductions - - -
As at 31 March 2020 26,13 390.54 416.68
Net block
As at 31 March 2019 18.84 729.83 748.67
As at 31 March 2020 11.91 627.76 639.67
\.\'il-” 1A &
_r: P “




STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

7

DEPQOSITS

{Unsecured, considered geod)

(Z in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Financia! assets at Amortised Cost

Security deposils 10.47 9.80
Total 10.47 9.80
OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(F in Lakhs)
Parficulars As at Asiat
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Fixed deposits with banks* 45.00 45.00
Accrued interest - 2.14
Total 45.00 47.14
* Under lien with barks for issuance of bank guarantee.
OTHER NON- CURRENT ASSETS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars e~ i
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deferred lease rentals » 4.45
Prepaid expenses 0.45 0.56
Capital advance 0.91 2.00
Total 1.36 7.01
10 INVENTORIES
(Al lower of cost or Net Realisable Value) (¥ in Lakhs)
- As at As at
Gl 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Raw Materials and components 322.14 362.08
Work-in-progress 3.91 7.56
Finished goods* 612.44 917.60
Total 938.49 1,287.24

*Finished goods includes goods-in transit of 2 407.85 Lakhs (as al 31 March 2019: ¥ 552.66 Lakhs)
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 202C

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

Trade Receivables:
Unsecured, considered good*
Unsecured, credit impaired

Less: Provision for expected credit loss

Total

(7 ip Lakhs]_

As at

3'] Nl_a_rch 2019

2,063.42 1,202.84
10.30 16.80
2,073.72 1,212.64
(10.30) (16.80)
2,063.42 1,202.84

* Trade receivables includes due from related parties of  408.93 lakhs (as at 31 March 2018: ¥ 255.72 Lakhs)

Note:

The Company estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on the greater of a specific reserve and a
reserve calculated based on the historical write-off percentage over the last two years. In addition, the allowance for
uncollectible accounts includes reserves for customer credits and cash discounts, which are also estimated based

on past experience.

Reconciliation of provision for expected credit loss: (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars fsial gl
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 16.80 12.32
Add: Provision for expected credit loss recognised during the year 6.16 1169
Less: Provision reversed during the year (12.66) (7.21)
Balance at the end of the year 10,30 16.80
~wiD
o




STORPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

12

13

14

15

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

= in_l :;khs)_
Particul As al As at
articutars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash on hand .04 0.41
Balances with banks:
In current account 642.57 178.10
In fixed deposits (with original matuity within 3 months) - 200.00
Tolal 642.61 378.51
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Z in l.akhs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Term deposit with banks
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but

less than twelve months 5477.00 4.724.00
Depaosits with original maturity of more than twelve months 45.00 45.00
5,622.00 4,769.00
Less: Term Deposit with Bank maturing after 12 months from the
balance sheet date classified as Non-Current Financial Asset
(Refer Note 8) 45.00 45.00
Total 5,477.00 4,724.00
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at Rlet
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest accrued on term deposits 76.26 52.48
Total 76.26 52.48
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars bpa As gl
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances 1o suppliers 9.06 15.55
Deferred lease rental - 0.75
Balances with government authorilies 1,463.64 2,006.95
Prepaid expenses 160.30 106.16
Total (a) 1,633.00 2,129.41
{Unsecured, credit impaired)
Balances with government authorities 250.75 -
l.ess; Provision for expected credit loss (250.75)
= Total (b) - -
GORET,
7N Total {a+b) 1,633.00 2,129.41
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATEE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

16 EQUITY

A) Equity

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particidars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2018

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
£.000,000 equity shares of ¥ 1/- each

Equity shares
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:

each fully paid up.

558,012 {as at 31 March 2019: 558,012) Equity Shares of /-

Total Equity

5000]  50.00
50.00 50.00
5.58 5.58
5.58 5,68

1} Terms /rights attached to each class of shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1 per share Each holder of equity shares is
entitied to one vote per share. The Company normally deciares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The dislribution will be in prapertion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders. During the year ended 31 March 2020, on account of the interim dividend for financial year ended 31
March 2020 the Company has incurred a net cash outflow of ¥ 1,146.91 lakhs inclusive of dividend distribution tax.

ii) There has been no movement in number of issued, subscribed and paid up equity shares dudng the current year and

previous yaar,

ili) Details of shareholders holding more than & percent shares

As at 31 March 2020

Ag at 31 March 2019

Name of Shareholder

Number % Number %%
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid up
Signade Netherlands BV
{Formerly known as SPG Netherlands BV) 3,87,500 69.44% 3,87,500 69.44%
Signode India Ltd 1,70,512 30.56% 1,70,512 30.56%

iv) Details of shares held by the holding company

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Name of Shareholder Number % Numbor 7
Signade Netherlands BY
(Formerly known as SPC Netherlands 8V)
(the holding Cornpany) 3,87,500 69.44% 3,87,500 69.44%

v) The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor there has been any buy back of shares during five years

immediately preceding 31 March 2020




SYOPAICINDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

16 EQUITY
By Other Equily

Particulars

As at

® inlLakhs)

31 March 2020

Securities premium

31_Ma_rch_2_019

As at

Opening balance 1.049 44 1.049 .44
Add: addition during the year - -
Total (a)| 1,049.44 1,049.44
Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 7.632.32 5.198.08
Add: profit during the year 2,478.40 2.424 42
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (4.58) 982
L ess: Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (1,146.91) =
Total (b) 8,859.25 7,632.32
Total (a+b) 14,008.69 8,681.76
47 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
ey 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2018
Operaling lease liabilities 494.24 -
Total 494.24 -
(i) The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:
(T in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2018

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Finance cost accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities

Balance at the end of the year

Current lease liabilities
Non-current [ease liabilities

607.40
51.42
(102.96)

555.86

61.62
49424

(i)

are as follows:

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 on an

undiscounted basis

(7 In Lakhs)

Particulars

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
108.11 102.96
489.75 465.96
125.95 257.36
723.81 826.28

(m} The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liahilities is 8.80%

\\‘1
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F‘of\‘lhr year ended 31 March 2018, the amount of minimum lease payments with respect 1o
|u0§inmea in the profit and loss statement for the year is ¥ 99.61 lakhs.
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

18 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

Provision for employec benefits

As at
31 March 2020

- As at
31 March 2019

Provision for Gratuily (Refer note 35) 51.30 24 57
Provision for leave encashment 3510 37.26
Total 86.40 61.83
19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
{Z in Lakhs)
Particulars Asial Ak
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Deferred Tax Liabilities™
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability on
Depreciation 148.97 165.88
Total (a) 148,97 165.88
Deferred Tax Assets*
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets on
Disallowance u/s 43B of the Income Tax Act 24 15 19.95
Provision for expected credit l0ss 65.70 4.89
Disallowance u/s 40a(i) of the Income tax Act 8.19 9.47
Lease payments 4,26 -
Total (b} 102.30 34.31
Total (a-b) 46.67 131.57

*The tax impact for the above purpose has been arrived at by applying the tax rate of 25.168% (As at 31 March

2019: 29.12%) being the prevailing tax rate for Indian companies under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

a Movement in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

(% in Lakhs)

Property, plant

Provision for

Disallowance

Particulars ; expected credit | underincome [Lease payments
and equipment
loss tax act
Opening balance as at 01 April 2018 (173.16) 4,27 46.20 -
(Charged)/credited:
- to profit or loss 7.28 0.62 (12.74)
- to other comprehensive income - (4.04)
Closing batance as at 31 March 2019 (165.88) 4.89 29.42 “
Opening balance as at 01 April 2019 (165.88) 4.89 29.42
{Charged)/crediled:
- to profil or loss 16.91 60.81 138 4.26
- to other comprehensive income 1.54
(148.97) 65.70 32.34 4.26

o{Closingrbalance as at 31 March 2020




STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

20 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(Z in Lakhs)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Financial Liabilitics at amortised cost
Secured
Foreign currency loans from banks:

Pre-shipment credit finance (refer note 20 1 helow) 600.00

1,100.00

Total 600.00

1,100.00 |

20.1 Packing credit/Cash credit facility from Citi Bank Lid as at 31 March 2020 of ¥ 600.00 Lakhs (31 March 2019: ?
1,100.00 Lakhs), is secured by hypothecation of present and future stocks, book debts and plant and machinery on
pari-passu basis. The rate of interest on the loan is ranging from LIBOR +spread (1%). The loan is repayable

within 0 days to 120 days from the dale of sanclion.

20.2 Net debt reconciliation

(¥ in Lakhs)
. As at Total
Partiouiars 31 March 2020
Balance as at 31 March 2018 934.86 934 .86
Cash flow (nel) 138.19 133.19
Interest expense 31.95 31.95
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,100.00 1,100.00
Cash flow (net) (528.73) (528.73)
Interest expense 2873 2873
Balance as at 31 March 2020 600.00 600.60
. (&
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

21 TRADE PAYABLES
R — B (T in [ akhs}
Particul As at As at
) ELNL B ) 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Financial Liabitities at amortised cost
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer noie a 216.84 27069
below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other lhan micro and small 1,110.34 986 58
enterprises’
Total 1,327.18 1,2567.27
*Includes dues ta related parties of ¥ 53.22 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 23.99 Lakhs)
a) Details of amount outstanding to Micro and Small enterprises based on available information with the
Company is as follows:
(T in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Principal amount due and remaining unpaid
On account of Raw Materials 216.84 270.69
On account of capital goods - -
Interest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act -
Amount of payment made beyond the appointed day during the year - -
Interest due and payable for the pericd of delay other than (3) above - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding - -
years
This information has been delermined to the extent the Company have received intimation from the suppliers
regarding their status under the Acl.
22 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(7 in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
. 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Operating lease liabilities (refer note 17) 61.62
Total 61.62
23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
e 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Statutory dues 39.10 53.41
Employee benefils payable 94 .95 100.11
Avass N Total 134.05 153,52
r_r;._/"' \\,flc“\
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

24 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

25

(7 In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for bonus 82.73 82.12
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 9.57 6.37
Total 92.30 88.49
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
{Z in Lakhs)
Particular As at As at
el 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax liabilities
Provision for tax 141.03 1,012.88
Current tax assets
Advance tax and Tax deducted at source (62.28) {1,001.13)
Total 78.75 11.75
.- \‘,-\il:'t,-. r
v
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

- - B (¥ i Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

L __31 March 2620

31 March 2019

—

Sale of products

10,937.29

11,800.37

Total

10,937.29

11,800.37

impact on adoption of Ind AS 115:

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time by using the modified retrospective method of adoption with
the date of initial application of 1 April 2018. Under this method, the cumulative effecl of initially applying Ind
AS 115 is recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 April 2018

Comparative prior period has not been adjusted.

The adoption of the new standard did not have a material impact as at 1 April 2018 for the revenue contracts
that are not completed as at that date.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
The Company invoices its customers at an agreed price as per the sales order received by the Company.
Accordingly, there are no differences between the agreed contract price and lthe amount revenue recognized

by the Company.

iii Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Refer Note 36 for disaggregated revenue information.

iv Assets and liabilities in relation to contracts with customers

(Z in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31'March 2020 31 March 2019
Assets
Trade receivables 2,083.42 1,202.84
Total 2,063.42 1,202.84
27 OTHER INCOME
(¥ in Lakhsg)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest income 350.84 190.15
Foreign exchange gain (net) 34048 235.74
Export incentives 25825 384 02
Other income 6.55 3.41
Sundry batance no longer payable wrile back 3.00 -
Reversal of provision for doubtfut debts 6.50 -
- Total 965.62 813.32




STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

28 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

MARCH 2020

Particulars

(Z n Lakhs)
For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening stock 362.08 464.44
Add: Purchases 4,744 64 6,033.58
5,106.72 6,498.02

Less: Closing stock 322 14 362.08
Total| 4,784.58 6,135.94

29 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(2 in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Work-in-progress 7.56 22.37
Finished goods (including goods-in-transit) 917.60 717.61
Total {a) 925.16 739.98
inventory at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 3.91 7.56
Finished goods (including goods-in-transit) 612.44 917.60
Total (b) 616.36 925.16
Change in inventories (a-b) 308.80 (185.18)
30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Z in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Salaries, wages and incentives 1,111.04 1,244.16
Contribution to provident and other funds 22.38 19.54
Gratuity expenses 24.70 21.64
Staff welfare expenses 2478 31.26
Total 1,182.90 1,316.60
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

31

32

FINANCE COSTS

Particulars

) (7 ir Lakhs)
For the year Far the year
ended ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

'Q

N

Interest on borrowings 28.73 3195
interesl on delayed payment of statutory dues 14,00 11.55
Other finance cost 6.87 7.71
Interest on shorifall of advance tax 0.78 1.96
Interest on lease expenses 51.42

Total 101.80 53.16
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

(¥ in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 82.24 75.66
Depreciation on right to use assets (refer note 5) 68 86 -
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 6) 109.01 106.99

Total 260.11 182.65
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

33 OTHER EXPENSES

34

(i}

Particulars

For the year
ended
_31 March 2020

(2 in Lakhs)
For the year
ended
31 March 2019

Rent 805 107.31
Repairs and maintenance
Planl and machinery 4579 6473
- Others 8.38 639
Power and fuel 4313 52.74
Printing and stationery 2.98 3.05
Security charges 16.56 16.58
Communicalion expenses 5.83 6.15
Legal and professional charges 24211 196.25
Advertising & business promotion 0.30 7.81
Product research expenses 2163 33.50
Travelling and conveyance expenses 70.68 73.02
insurance 17.25 22.68
Payments to auditors:
Statutory audit 4.00 4.00
Tax audit 1.60 1.60
other services 3.27 2.31
Customs clearance charges 970.04 822.04
Sales commission 7.15 7.15
Transport charges 40.00 73.93
Technical consultancy services 124.19 123.63
Rates and taxes 26.00 15.88
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables - 4.48
Provision for expected credit loss on others assets 25075 -
Bank charges 11.47 17.58
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 37) 31.00 17 .45
Miscellaneous expenses 29.70 23.76
Total 1,981.86 1,704.02
CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS
(T in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Capital Commitments

Contigent Liabilities
Contigent Liabilities (refer note below)

Capital commitments towards capital assets (net of advances paid)

0.64

140

Note

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28,
2619 on Provident Fund (PF) on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its
applicability of effeclive date The Company is evaluating and seeking legal inputs regarding various

interprélative issues and its impact.
. e\
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

i)

Defined Contribution Plans:

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on accounl of provident fund and
other funds There are no other obligations other ihan the contribution payabie to the respective authorities
(T in Lakhs)
For the year
ended
31 March 2019

For the year
ended
31 March 2020

Particulars

17.75
1.79

21.22

Contribution to provident fund
1.16

Confribution to Employee state insurance

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has a funded defined benefil gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. Under the Acl, employee who has completed five years of service is enlitied to specific benefit. The
level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age. Every
employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last
drawn satary) for each completed year of service as per the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with

{otal ceiling on gratuity of ¥ 2,000,000.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and

loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

(2 in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Statement of profit and loss
Net employee beanefit expense recognised in the employee cost
Current service cost 23.21 20.71
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 1.49 0.93
Total expense charged to profit and loss account 24.70 21.64
Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Opening amount recognised in OC1 outside profit and loss account (24.15) (10.29)
Remeasurement during the period due to :
Actuarial foss / (gain) arising from ¢hange in financial assumptions 8.52 -
Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographical assumptions (5.39) 000
Aclual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.72 0.80
Actuarial joss / {gain) arising on account of experience changes 2.25 (14.66)
Amount recognised in OCl outside profit and loss account 6.10 (13.86)
Closing amount recognised in OC! outside profit and loss account (18.05) {24.15)
Reconcilation of net liability / assset
Opening defined benefit liability / (assets) 24.57 17.28
Expense charged to profit & loss account 2470 2164
Amount recognised in outside profit and loss account 6.10 (13.86)
Employer Coniributions (4.07) (0.49)
Closing net defined benefit liabiity / (asset) 51.30 24 57
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Movement in bencfit obligation and plan assets

A reconciliation of the benefit obligation during the inter-valuation period:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(Z in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31 Marcly 2020 31 March 2019
Upening defined benefit obligation 100 32 8842 |
Current service cost 2321 2071
Interest on defined benefit obligation 7.38 65.48
Remeasurement during the period due to .
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumplions 8.52 -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions (5.39) 0.00
Actuartal loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 225 (14 GB)
Benefits paid (4.07) (0.63)
Closing defined benefit obligation [liability / (asset)] recognised in 132.22 100.32
halance sheet
A reconciliation of the plan assets during the inter-vajuation period: (F in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 75.75 71.14
Employer Contributions 4.07 0.49
Interest on plan assets 5.90 5.55
Remeasurement during the period due to :
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.73) (0.80)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes - -
Benefits paid (4.07) (0.63)
Closing plan assets recognised in balance sheet 80.92 75.75
Net fiability is bifurcated as follows :
Current - -
Non-current 51.30 24.56
Net liability 51.30 24.56

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the company's plans are

shown below:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)
Withdrawal rate

Mortality pre-retirement

6.90%

8.00%

18% at younger
age reducing to
0% at older ages
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14)

7.60%

8.00%

18% at younger
age reducing to
0% at older ages
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,

remotien
/;n\ql%;e ~
£ Pl g i ,‘\\

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market




STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

A quantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
indian gratuity plan:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase / {decrease) by) 0.50% 0.50%
Impact on defined benefit obligation -increase of sentivity level -4.67% -4.61%
Impact on defined benefil obligation -decrease of sentivity level 5.06% 4.98%
Assumptions -Future salary escalations rates

Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase / (decrease) by) 0.50% 0.50%
Impact on defined benefit obligation-increase of sentivity level 4.98% 4.58%
Impact on defined benefit obligalion-decrease of sentivity level -4.65% -4.27%

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plant in future years

Particufars Asial Feral
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019

Fxpected benefits for year 1 7.77 6.37

2-3 year 7.95 6.37

3-4 year 19.04 6.48

4-5 year 7.33 14.79

5-10 year 50.98 4573
211.77 173.55

10 year and above

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporling period is 9.48 years
tfous year: 9.50 years).
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STOPAK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 IAARCH 2020

36

37

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

In accordance with IND AS 108 “Operating segment” - The Comobany used o present the segment information
identified on the basis of internal yeport used by the Company to aliocale resources to the segment and assess lich
periomance The Board of Directors of the Company is colleclively the Chief Operaling Decision Maker {CODM) of

the Company
The chief operaling decision maker menitors the operating results of its segment seprately for the purpose of making

decisions aboul resources allocation and performance assesgment. Segment performace is evaluated on the basis
on profit and loss

Summary of ihe segment information as follows

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars - Gy
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Segment revenue
Sales and income from operations
Within India 410,09 363.92
Qutside India 10,627.20 11,436.45
Total 10,937.29 11,800.37
Carrying amount of assets by geographical location of assets
Segment assets
Within India 9,844 66 8,822,189
Quitside India 3.080.82 2,669.58
Total 12,935.48 11,491.77
Additions to property, plant and equipment {including intangible
assets and capital work in progress)
Within India 43.28 174.91
Outside India - .
Total 43.28 174,91

Al non-financial assets are located in India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As per Seclion 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, a CSR commitlee has been formed by the Company The areas for
CSR activities are eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care including preventive
health care, ensuring environmental sustainability education, promoling gender equality and empowering women and
other activities. The amounl has been expended on the activities which are specified in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(% in Lakhs)

. Current year Previous year
REFETIEE 2019-20 201819
Gross amount required o be spent by the Company during the year 60.51 44,91
|Less: amount spent during the year in cash
towards promoling educalion o children - -
towards communily service project 3100 17.45
Net-amgunt unspent/(excess) amount spent 29.51 27.46
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38 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(i) Financial instruments by category and fair value hierarchy

(ii

/::"’ consicle?ql]“la be the same as their fair values, due 1o their short-term nature o\
{3} .

o)

&)

This section explaing the judgements and estimales made in delermining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or fair
value through Profit and Loss and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statemetns. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining the fair value,
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
statndard An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

(Z in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(Amortised Cost) | (Amortised Cost)
(Level 3) {Level 3)

Financial Assets
Deposils 7 10.47 9.80
Other non current financial assets 8 45.00 47 14
Trade receivables 11 2,063.42 1,202.84
Cash and cash equivalents 12 642.61 378.51
Other Bank balances 13 5,477.00 4,724.00
Other current financial assets 14 76.26 52.48
Total financial assets 8,314.76 6,414.77
Financial liabilities
Short term Borrowings 20 600.00 1,100.00
Trade payables 21 1,327.18 1.257.27
Other financial liabilities:

Lease liabilities 22 555.86 -
Total financial liabilities 2,483.04 2,357.27

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3.

There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year,

The Company's policy is to recognise transfer into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of
the reporting period.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

=

The carrying amounts of securily deposils are considered to be the same as their fair values since difference
between the fair value and the carrying amounts of security deposits is not considered to be material.

,’}Tﬁé_’da};’ymg amounls of trade receivables, trade payables, capita! creditors and cash and cash equivalents are
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The risk management poiicies of the Company are esiablished (o identify and analyse the risks taced by the
Company. to set appropriate risk fimils and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to himils  Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regulatly 1o reflect changes in markel conditions and the
Company’s activities.

The Management has overall responsibility for the estabiishment and oversight of the Company's risk

management framework
In performing its operating, investing and financing aclivities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity

risk and Market risk

Carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities:
The following table summaries the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the

period by categories:
(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 642.61 378.51
Bank balances other than above 5,477.00 4724.00
Trade receivables 2.063.42 1.202.84
Other current financial assets 76.26 52.48
Deposits 10.47 9.80
Other non current financial assets 45.00 4714
At end of the year 8,314.76 6,414.77

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 600.00 1,100.00
Trade payables 1.327.18 1,257.27
Other financial liabilities &
At end of the year 1,927.18 2,357.27
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in markel prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
loans and borrowings, deposils and derivative financial instruments

(i) Credit risk on financial assets

Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counterparties to
discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of cash balances with banks, cash
equivalents and receivables, and other financial assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is; the total of the
fair value of the financial instruments and the full amount of any loan payable commitment at the end of the
reporting year. Credit risk on cash balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are entities with
acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other financial assets is limited because the other parties are entities with
acceptable credi ratings. For credit risk on receivables an ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of the debtors and a loss from impairment is recognised in profit or loss. The exposure lo credit risk is
contralled by setting limits on the exposure to individual customers and these are disseminated to the relevant
persons concerned and compliance is monitored by management. There is no significanl concentration of
credit risk, as the exposure is spread over a large number of counter-parties and customers unless otherwise
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements below

As disclosed in Note 12, cash and cash equivalents balances generally represent short term deposits with a less
than 90-day maturity.

As part of the process of setting customer credit limits, different credit terms are used. The average credit period
g 'j?'i""'} uranted to trade receivable customers is about 120 days. But some customers take a longer period o

I (hesmaunts. _\y
N\ FI.' 3\ - -
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Exposure to credit risk
Financial asset for which loss allowance is measured using expected credil loss model

{Tin L.akhs)
o . As at A;z;t_
FRIECEE | 31march2020 | 31 March 2019

_E;lancial assets R
Cash and cash equivalents 642 61 378.51
Other bank balances 5,477.00 4,724 00
Trade receivables 2.063.42 1,202.84
Other current financial assets 76 26 52 48
Deposits 10.47 9.80
Other non-current financial assets 45.00 47 14
At end of the year 8,314.76 6,414.77

(a} Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are not due as at the end of reporting year:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Within credit days » =

(b} Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are past due as at the end of reporting year but not

impaired:
(2 in Lakhs)
Particulars asral fisat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables:
Less than 60 days 2,011.17 1,202.84
61 to 120 days 52.60 -
2,063.77 1,202.84

In the opinion of management, {rade recgivable, Financial assets, Cash and cash equivalent, Balance with Bank,
Loans and other financial assets have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to
the amount at which they are stated in the balance shest

The Company has recognised provision for doubtful deblsfexpected loss for the year is ¥ 10.30 lakhs (Previous
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(ili) Foreign currency risk

The Company operates internaticnglly and the major peition of business is tansacted in USD. The Company has
Sales and Purchase in foreign currency Consequently. the Company is exposed to foreign axchange risk

Foreign exchange exposure is pardially balanced by purchasing in goods. comodities and services in the respective

currencies

The company evaluate exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and the company follows
established risk management policies

Foreign currency exposures not specifically covered by forward exchange contracts as at year end are as follows:

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

. currency Z in Lakhs Z in Lakhs
Particulars - - - -
Type Foreign Equivalent Foreign Equivalent

currency indian Rupees* currency Indian Rupees*
Trade payables usoD 0.03 2.47 0.04 2.48
Trade payables CAD 0.01 0.56 0.01 0.54
Trade payables EURC 0.30 24.88 0.01 0.53
Advance to suppliers usD 0.10 7-38 0.16 11.13
Advance to suppliers RAND - 0.34 1.70
Advance to suppliers EURO - - 0.01 115
Trade receivables ush 26.47 1,994.22 2235 1,546.93
Trade receivables EURQ 2.65 219.689 3.20 248.83
Trade receivables CAD 16.04 856.48 13.56 702.42

*as at year end exchange rates

Foreing currency sensitivity

1 % increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

o
o

Particulars ¥ in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs _
1 % increase 1 % decrease 1 % increase 1 % decrease
Trade payables (0.28) 028 (0.04) (0.04)
Advance to suppliers 0.07 (0.07) (0.14) (0.14)
Trade receivables 30.70 (30.70) (24.98) (24 .98)
)\
s 8/' )OJ
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(iv) Interest rate risk
Interes! rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market inlerest rales

Company has interest rate risk exposure mainly from changes in rate of interest on borrowing & on deposil with
pank The interest rate are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statement of the Company. The
following table analyse the breakdown of the financial assets and liabilities by type of interest rate:

(% in Lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019

Particulars

Financial assets
Inierest bearing

- lixed interest rate 45.00 47 14
Other bank balances 5,477.00 4,724.00
Non interest bearing
Deposits 1047 9.80
Cash and cash equivalents 642.61 378.51
Trade receivables 2,063.42 1,202.84
Financial Liabilities
interest bearing
- floating interest rate 600.00 1,100.00
Non interest bearing
Trade payables 1,327.18 1,257.27
Other financial liabilities 555.86 -

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected, after the excluding the credit exposure for which interest rate swap has been taken
and hence the interest rate is fixed. Wilh all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is

affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as foliows:

(¥ in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particuf
AgErs 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019

Increase in basis poinls 50.00 50.00
Effect on profit before tax 3.00 5.50
Decrease in basis points 50.00 50.00
Effect on profit before tax (3.00) (5.50)
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(iii} Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be abie to meet its present and future cash and collateral
obligalions without incuiring unacceptable losses The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum
levels of hquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely maonitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system It maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and

overdraft from banks at an optimised cost

The Company maximum exposure {o credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019 is the carrying amounts. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the
financial liabililies. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 90 days. The other payables are
with shori-term durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. The
following table analysis financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities:

(% in Lakhs)
Particuiars On demand EESSHildnkie More 12 months Total
months
Year ended 31 March 2020
Borrowings - 600.00 - 600.00
Other financial liabilities - 108.11 615.70 723.81
Trade payables - 1,327.18 1,327.18
- 2,035.29 §15.70 2,650.99
Year ended 31 March 2019
Borrowings - 1,100.79 - 1,100.79
Other financial liabilities - - - -
Trade payables . 1,257.27 - 1,257.27
- 2,358.06 - 2,358.06

At present, the Company does expects to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such cash
commitments, the operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capilal management, capital inciudes issued equnty cap:ital, share premium and
all other aquity reserves altrinutadle to the equity hotders of the parent The primary objective of the Company's
capital management is to maximise the shareholde: value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condit:ons and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjusl the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares The Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt The Company's policy is to keep
optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars alol AER

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Borrowings 600.00 1,100.00
Trade payables 1,327.18 1,257.27
Other financial fiabilities 61.62 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents (642.61) (378.51)
Net debt (a) 1,346.19 1,878.76
Total equity 10,014.27 8,687.34
Total member's capital (b) 10,014.27 8,687.34
Capital and net deht {c=a+b) 11,360.46 10,666.10
Gearing ratio (%) (d=c/a) 11.85% 18.55%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current year and previous year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31

Msych 2020 and 31 March 2019,
q\\*’ u;\'
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41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:

Related parties

Names of related parties

Signode Industrial Group Haldings (Bermuda) Lid
Signode Netherlands BV

(Formerly known as SPG Netherlands BV)

Signode India Ltd

Signode Industrial group SA Pty Lid

Signode Systems Thailand Lid.

Signode Korea Inc

Signode Industrial Group Mexico S. DE R.L.DE CV.
Signode Singapore Pte Ltd

Signode Packaging Group Malaysia Sdn Bhd,
Bates Carga- PAK APS

Signode Netherland BV Formerly known as V.A.C BV/
Cader

Slgnode Korea Inc

Signode KK

Shippers Product

Shippers Europe

Multiwall Pacakaging Corporation

Santosh C Tandon

Ultimate holding Company
Holding Company

Fellow subsidiary Company
Fellow subsidiary Company
Fellow subsidiary Company
Fellow subsidiary Company
Fellow subsidiary Company
Fellow subsidiary Company
Fellow subsidiary Company
Sister concern Company

Sister concern Company
Slster cancern Company
Sister concern Company
Slster concern Company
Sister concern Company
Sister concern Company
Key Managerial personnel

Notes:

The refated party relationships have been determined on the basis cf the requirements of the Indian
Accounting Standard (IND AS) -24 “Related Party Disclosures” and the same have been relied upon by the

auditors.

The relationships as mentioned above pertain to those related parties with whom transactions have taken
place during the current year / previous year, except where control exist, in which case the relationships have

heen mentioned irrespective of transactions with the related party.

P \‘\"'l..
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41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE: CONTINUED

ii Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related party:

a During the year transactions (2 in Lakhs)
, Current Year Previous Year
EicRinGs 2019-20 2018-19

Sale of product
Signode India Ltd 246.65 208.48
Signade Korez Inc 40.54 0.43
Shippers Product 734.39 847.17
Shippers Eurgpe Sprl 0.1 0.07
Signode Industrial Group LLGC 0.00 -
Signode Systems Thailand Ltd. - 10.63
Bates Cargo- PAK APS 399.37 389.64
Signode Netheriand BV Formerly known as V.A.C BV/Cader 86.04 0.56
Signode Packaglng Group Malaysia Sdn Bhd. 71.66 0.63
Signode Industrial Group Mexico S, DE R.L.DE CV. ’ 0.15 .
Signode Singapore Pte Lid 7.15 -
Purchases of materials
Shippers Product 0.22 -
Bates Cargo-Pak ApS §2.92 0.53
Signode India Limited 4.81 2.61
Rent paid
Signode india Limited 0.32 0.86
Multiwall Pacakaging Corporation - 3.38
Legal and professional charges
Signade Indla Limited - 1.08
Technical Consultancy
Shippers Product 124 .88 115.27
Consultancy charges
Signode Industrial Group LL.C - 1.48
Signode India Limited 3.02 3,90

Transport Samples
Bates Cargo-Pak ApS 0.32 -

Insurance charges
Signode India Limited 4.61 -

Remuneration to key managerial personnei*
Santosh Tandon 158.89 207.76

*The above figures do not include provision for compensated absences and gratulty payable to the directors.
as the same are determined an an actuarial basig for the Company as a whole and separate figures for the
directors are not available.
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b

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE: CONTINUED

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and refated party:

Balance dusfreceivable as at year end (T in Lakhs)
Particulars St st

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade payables
Shippers Product 28.34 23.20
Signode India Ltd - 0.27
Bates Cargo-Pak ApS 24.88 0.52
Trade receivables
Signode India Ltd 84.12 44,56
Shippers Product 153.56 127.85
Signode Korea inc 21.84 -
Signode Packaging Group Malaysia Sdn Bhd. 20.69 -
Slgnode Industrial Group Mexico S. DE R.L.DE CV. 0.15 -
Signode Singapore Pte Ltd 7.43 -
Bates Cargo- PAK APS 114,87 83.02
Signode Netherland BY Formerly known as V.A.C BV/Cader 6.28 0.19

i
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42 TAXATION
The maior compoenents of income 1ax expensa for [he years are

Particulars

(T in Laxhsg)

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Current income tax:

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Current income tax charge 898.06 977.25

Adjustments in respect of previous year (10.24) -

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (83.36) 4.83
804.46 982.08

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 a current tax of ¥ 1.53 lakhs and credit of T 4.04
lakhs respectively, have been recorded in other comprehansive income pertaining to remesurement of defined

benefit liability.

A Reconciliation of income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

income before Income taxes is summarized as follow:

(Z in Lakhs)
Particulars At At
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Profit before income tax 3,282.86 3,406.50
Rate of Income tax 2517% 29.12%
Computed expecled tax expenses 826.23 991.97
Tax effect due to non-deductable expenses 10.22 393
Tax rate differences (17.85) (11.28)
Less deduction on donation (3.90) (2.54)
814.70 982.08

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Applicable statutory tax rate for financial year 2019-20 is 25.168% (Previous year 2018-19: 29.12%)

The Gross movement in the current income lax Liability for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is

as follows:
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars =l e

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Net current income tax liability at the beginning (11.75) (33.68)
Income tax paid 82268 1001.13
Current tax expenses (898.84) (979.20)
Income tax refund received (1.08)
Excess provision of earlier year reversed 10.24 -
Net current income tax liability at the end (78.75}) (11.75)

i
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44

45

46

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic EPS amounts are calculaied by dhding the profit for the year attibutable to equity holders hy the
weighted average number of equity shares oiistanding during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit altnbutable te equily holders by the weighted average
~umber of equity shares outstanding during the year pius the weighted average number of equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilulive potential equity shares inte equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

B (% in Lakhs)
Particulars SIES o
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Profil for the year attributable to the equily shareholders (7 in Lakhs) 2,478.40 2,424.42
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted
earning per share (Nos.) 558,012 558.012
Face valug per share (in ) 1 1
Basic earning per share (in ¥) 444 .15 434.47
Diluted earning per share (in ¥) 444 15 434 .47

The Company is required to comply with certain transfer pricing regulations under Section 82 to Section 82F of
the Act. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are entered having regards to arms
length price and that the aforesaid legislation will not have any adverse impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had written back certain amounts which were received as
advance from customer, Stopak PTY Ltd aggregating to € 90,430/~ and the balance outstanding in the books as
on 31 March 2018 is 2 5,947,581/-. The company has approached RBI, seeking approval for the transfer of
these amounts. The approval is yet to be received and the company, pending such approval, has writlen back
these amounts of 5,947 581/- during the year ended 31 March 2018.The Management is of the view that the
documentation shall be shared and the approval will be received in due course.

Balances in the accounts of trade receivables, loans and advances, trade payables and other current liabiilites
are subject to confirmation / reconciliation, if any. The management does not expect any material adjustment in
respect of the same effecting the financial statements on such reconciliation / adjustments.
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48

During the previcus year, the Company has changed the method of valuation of inventory from First-in First-out
{FIFO) to Weighted Average method. The impact on the profit for the year, 1eserves and surplus and inventories
as at 31 March 2019, due to above deviation are not ascertained / guantified.

Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of Receivables. inventories, property, plant and equipment and other assets / liabilities. In
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions
because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal
and external sources of Information. As on current date, the Company has concluded that the Impact of COVID -
19 is not material based on these estimates Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to
monitar developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any.

Signatures to Notes "1" to "48"
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